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(EDITOR’S NOTE: Last
a series of 30 articles on the
early dwelling houses along
Beaufain and Wentworth

streets.)
By W.H.J. THOMAS

At the northwest corner
of the intersection of Beaufam
and Pitt streets stands a two-
story, flat-roofed brick dwell-
ing that 1is of an
mnusually consistent row of
five medium-sized antebellum
residences (a sixth has been
demolished) stretching
between Beaufain and
Wentworth streets on the west
side of Pitt.

This house occupying the
corner lot follows in design
the squarish, solid fashion
popular here in the i830s and
1840s when this unuosual unit
of dwellings was built on pro-
perty owned by the French
Acadian family of l.anneau.
Like at least three of its four
sarviving antebeilum
neighbors, this house (1 Pitt
St) was built by the Lan-
neaus and was their home at
least briefly.

This portion of Pitt Street
was in the eastern most sec-
tion of Harleston’s Villaga
{where the streets were nam-
ed patriotically for the figures
of the time) that was
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developed after 1770. The lots
on the west side of Pitt were
ovned in the name of Isaac
Harleston and in 1778 he sold
these lots to Basile Lanneau, a
tanner and currier, who had
come {o Charleston as an ex-
ile from Acadia, that early
French colony located on
what is now Nova Scotia.

The Lanneaus .(before ar-
riving here the family spelled
it La Noue) had settled m
Acadia in the 1660s, had been
pushed into exile m 1335, and
arrived in South Carolina
later that same vyear. Ap-
paretly only two children of
the familv — Jean Baptiste
and Basile — survived. and
the latter was befriended by
Henry Laurens. the wealthy
merchant and Revolutionary
patriot, and grew up under his
protecuon.

Basile Lanneau became a
Protestant, a prominent
citizen of the city, served
three terms iIn the state
legislature, and had an ex-
tencive progeny by his second
wife. of whom Basi: Lanneau
Gildersleeve, his grandson,
was probably the most d:stng—
vished. being the leading clas-
sical scholar in Amenica dur-
ing his lifetime when he taught
at Johns Hopkins University
and editor of the “American
Journal of Philology’’.

In 1834, the - jot at the
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northwest commer passed to
Charles Henrv Lanneau, ap-
parently the builder of 1 Pitt.
It is difficult to trace exactly
which member of the family
was hiving where on Pitt,
because it seems that the
frame dwelling at 3 Pitt was
the first Lanneau house, then
3 and 7 Pitt (members re-
maming at 7 Pitt until late In
the 19th century) and then 1
Pitt.

The house was standing on
Nov. 20, 1848, when Charles

Do You Know
Your Charleston?

Henry Lanneau sold it fo
Williasm D. Porter far $.500 ,
as it is fully descrived in the
deed of convevance.

Porter Iived on aere into the
Civil War and the
neighborhood carries a tradi-
tion that 1 Pitt was used as a
piison for Union soldiers dur-
ing those years:; iron bars re-
maining on a window suggest
this may be true.

The house passed {o the
McCormacke, being sold by
Mrs. Pauine Walter
McCormack (wife to William
sohnson McCormack) to
Willam Baynard Simons on
Dec. 1, 1889, for $5,000.

Simons (1858-1926). a son cf
Thomas Young Simens (1832-
i831) and the former Susan
Bavnard, was an engineer
with the Ashley Phospate Co.
and later the superintendant
of Planters Fertilizer Works.
His familv maintained 1 Pitt
as their home for nearly 30
Vears.

On July 15, 1937, followmng
the death of Laura A. Simons,
the house was sold by her ex-
ceutrix, Jane Margaret Mid-
dleton, to Adele Bowman
Deas.

It was next purchased by
Donald M. Kirkpatrick and
Portia Kirkpatrick in 1951. On
Apnil 12, 1967, the house was
sold to its present owner, C.
Bradford Dean.

At the time the house was
constructed, a2 favored design
was (o make the dwellings of
“single house™ type somevhat
wider in proportion than had
previously been the practice.
This gave the dwelling a
rather blocky appearcnce > but
ailoxwed for quite spacious
rooms with 2 hallway running
along the length of the house
on the side opposite the
piazza.

Unlike the brick residences

to its north, which are built of

a polished, pressed brick that
allows for an unusually nar-

‘row mortar joint—a ‘high

fashion” building material of

the 1830s—the house at 1 Pitt
is constructed of the softly-
co'ored Charleston -grayv”
brick. These are laid 1In
Flemish bond. with flat brick
arches over the windows, a
watertable of headers. a
double-barred rehef between
first and second floors and a
dog-tooth cornice about the
parapet.

The order of entrance
architrave and on the two-
tiered piazza is Doric with on-
Iv the slightest dentil trim.
This same simplicity of design
is carried throughout the in-
terior. the decorative treat-
ment bheing limited to a quite
modified plaster moulding m
the principal rooms., a ©on-
sistent practice of broadly-
molded door and window
frzmes, and the only
lavishness appearing in the
handsomely carved. gold-ven-
ed black marble fireplace 1n-
sets.

To ada to the comfort of its
residents during the warm
seasons, the triple-lung
ptazza windows may be raised
fully to allow frea passage
from: the double narlors and
rear dining room 1o the
porches that border on a well-
kept garden.

Althougnh once 1in
apartments, ‘the house is now
retained as a single family
residence.
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House Is One Of Four C onstructed B y Acad lq
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DWELLING APPARENTLY BUILT IN 1840s
1 Pitt St. was long & possession of Simons family. (Staff Phote by Burbage}
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